BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended )
Accusation and Petition to Revoke )
Probation Against: )
)

Irwin Ira Rosenfeld, M.D. ) Case No. 800-2015-013696
)
Physician's and Surgeon's )
Certificate No. G 34731 )
)
Respondent )
)

DECISION

The attached Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby
adopted as the Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California,
Department of Consumer Affairs, State of California.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on _September 19, 2016.

IT IS SO ORDERED September 9, 2016,

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

Executive Director
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney Qeneral of Califoria

JUDITH T. ALVARADO

Supervising Deputy Attomeb

CLAUDIA RAMIREZ
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 205340

California Department of Justice
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Loa Angeles, California 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-5678

Facsmmile: (213) 8§97-939
Attorneys for Complainant
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General

- BEFORE THE
DICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First

IRWIN IRA ROSENFELD, M.D.
. 23121 Plaza Pointe Drive, #150 STIPULATED SURRENDER OF
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 : LICENSE AND ORDER

Physician’s and Surgeon’s Qertificate No,

G 34731,

_ A.J:ended Accusation | Case No. 800 2015 013696
and Petition to Revoke Probation Against: -

OAH No. 2015121069

Respondent. |

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

en}.iﬁcd proceedings that the

1. Kinberly Kirc
Board of California (“Bosr
represented in this matter b
Claudia Ramirez, Deputy A

2. TrwinlIraRos
attomesf David L. Rosner, B
Woodland Hills, California ¢

3. .On or about July

following matters &re truc:
PARTIES e
(“Complainent”) is the Executive Dirsctor of the Medical
). She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is
Kamala D, Harris, Attorney General of the Statc of Californis, by
omey Generdl, o : |
1d, M.D. (“Respondent”) is represented in this proceeding by
q.. whose address is 21781 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 516
91364,
1, 1977, the Board issued Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate No.

.

Stipulated Swreadar of Licenas (Case No. 3002015 013696)

PO SRy
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G 34731 to Respondent.
charges brought in First
013696 and will expire on F

4. Firsgt Amended
was filed before the Board
Accusation and Petition to
properly served on Respon
Defense contesting the First
First Amended Accusation &

p.4

t certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
ed Accusation and Petition to Rovoks Probation No, 800 2015

Qo0z/005

bruary 28, 2017, unless renswed.

' JURISDICTION _'
ccusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800 2015 013696
d is currently pending against Respondent. The First Amended
voke Probation and all other statutorily required documents were
st on December 21, 2015, Respondont timely filed his Notice of
Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation. A copy of
hd Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800 2015 013696 is attached as

Exhibit A and incerporated by reference.

5.  Respondent bas

arefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the

charges and allegations in First Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800

2015 013696, Respondent also has carefully read, fully discussed with counzel, and understands

the cffocts of this Stipulated
6. Respondeut is

Surzender of Licenss and Order.

hearing on the charges and allegations in the First Amended Agcusation and Petition to Revoke

Probation; the right to be

cross-examine the witnesses

¢sented by counsél, at his own expense; the right io__ confront and
against him; the right to present evidence and to testify on his own

behalf, the right to the issuatce of subpoenas to compel the attendance of wimesses and the

production of documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse deoision;

and all other rights accorded by the Californis Administrative Procedure Act aid other applicable

laws,

7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and

every right set forth above.

CULPABILITY

8.  Respondent undf.tsmnds that the charges and allegations in First Amended

2 .

y aware of bis legal rights in this matter, including the right toa |

Stipulated Surrender of License (Cese No, 800 2015 013656)
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Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800 2015 013696, if proven at a hearing,

" 11, This stiputation shall be subject to approval by the Board. Respondent understands
and agrees that counse] for Cnmplmnnnt and the staff of the Board may communicate directly

Respondent or his counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondeat undegstands and agrees that he
may not withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board

_be disqualified from further I:Zn by having considered this matter.

copies of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order, including Portable Dacument Format
(PDF) and facsimile signatures thcreto shall have the same force and eﬁ'wt as the originals.

" 13. In consideration of the forcgoing adxmsmona and st.\pulatlons, the part:es agree that
the Board may, without Further notice or formal praceeding, issue and enter the following Order:

06/29/2016 WED 16:25 FAX 949 §37 5002
1
i | constitute cause for imy
3 9. TForthe purpose
4 || Probation without the expen
/ 5 || ahearing, Complaingnt coul
6 || Accusation and Petition to
7 || discipline. Respondent
’ 8 || onthose charges,
9 10. Respondent und
10 || an onder accepting the surr
11 || process
12 "
13
14
15 || withthe Boa:d,mganﬂng this
16
17
18 || considers and acts upon it. If
19 || the Stipulated Surrender and
20 || paragrapk, it s.hall be Inadmis
r 21
22 "12.  The parties und
23
24
25
26
27
28

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificato No. G 34731, issued

by gives up his right to contest that cause for discipline exists based

dex of hls'Physmmn 8 and Surgeon's Certificate Mthout further

p.5
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)

discipline upon his Physician’s and Surgeon's Certificate.
resolving the First Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke

and uncertainty of further proceedings, Respondent agrees that, at
establish a factual basis for tho charges in the First Amended
voke Probation and that those charges constitute tause for

~
v

rstands that by signing this stipulation he coables the Bouard to issue

CONTINGENCY

stipulation and surrender, without notice to or participation by

the Board frils to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Ordcr )
Disclplinary Order shall he of no force or effect except for tl:us
ssible in any legal action betweoen the parﬁes, and the Board shall not

d and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and fa.cmm;le

ORDER

3

Stipulated Surronder of License (Case No. 8002015 013695)
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to Respondent [rwin Ite Rosenfeld, M,D.,‘is surrendered and sccepted by the Medical Board of

Celifornia.

1.  The surrender of

acceptance of the surrendered license by the Board shall constitute the imposition of disciplinc' A
against Respondent, This stipulation constitutes & record of tho discipline and shall beconue a part |
of Respondent’s license history with the Medical Board of California,

- 2. Respondent shall loss all I"ig,hts and privileges as & Physician and Surgeon in

Califomiti as of the effective

3. Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Board his wall certificate and, if one
was issued, pocket license of or before the effective dute of the Decision and Order.

4, IfRespondent sv

the State of Califotnia, the Board shail troat it as a petition for reinstatement, Respondent must
comply with all the laws, regulations and procedures for reinstetement of a revoked license in

effect at the time the petition
Amended Accusation and Pe

the petition.

3. If Respondent should ever apply or reapply for a new license or certification, or |

p.6
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Respondent’s Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate and the

date of the Board's Decision and Order.
er fileg an application for licensure or a pétiflon for reinstatement in

ie filed, ad all of the charges and allegations contained in First
tition to Revoke Probation No. 800 2015 013696 shall be deemed to
by Respondent when the Board determines whether to grant or deny |

petition for reinstatement of Ll:wnse. by any other heslth care licensing agency in the Stats of

California, all of the chasges

to Revoke Probation No. 800 2015 013696 shatl be deemed t6 be true, correct, and admitted by
R?spondent for the purpose of any Statement of Issucs or any other proceeding seeking to deny or

restrict licensure.

1 have carefuily read the above Stipuln'md Surrender of License and Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, David L. Rosner, Bsq. I understand the stipulation and the effect it

will have on nfy Physician’s
License and Order voluntaril

d allegations contained in First Amended Accusation and Petition

ACCEPTANCE

and Surgeon’s Certificate. { enter into this Stipulated Suxrender of
¥, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the

4

Stipulated Surrender of License (Case No, 800 2015 013696)
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1 || Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California.
2
3 || DATED: G-24+ 16 GP 0ot Floty -
' IRWIN IRA ROSENFELD, M.D.
4 ~ Respondent
5 1 have read and fully discussed with R.espondent Irwin Ira Rosenfeld, M.D. the terms and
6 || conditions and other matters contained in this Sttpulnted Surrender of License and Order, |
: 7 approve its form end cmitmt
| ’ g WVL/
9 || paTED: JUne 34 301 6
Aniorney ﬁr Re.rpondenr
11 .
|
12 | mons _
1 The foregoing Sﬁp:‘l:led Surrender of License and Order is hereby respectfully submitted
14 || for consideration by the Medical Board of California of the Department ofConsumar Affm:s
15 || Dated: ] uly (, 20l ‘Respectfully submittsd,
16 ’ . KAMALA D.HARRIS
Attorney General of California
17 JupiTH T. ALVARADO
18 Supervising Deputy Attorney-Generel |
. / .
/ A s :
19 (loidin WAy |
20 CLAUDIA RAMIREZ J
Doputy Attormey General
21 Attorneys for Complainant
22
i
! 23 LA2015601354
! 24 §2001653.doc ,
5
26
7
28
I
!
'{ 5
J Stipulatad Surreader of License (Caso No, 300 2015 011696)
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
KAMALA D. HARRIS SXACE%?&?(?ARDOF CALIFORNIA
, iforni DN 2V 205
Attorney General of Calif ENTO_ (¢
JUDITH T. ALVARADG BY D Rt fud>  ANALYST

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

CLAUDIA RAMIREZ

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 205340
California Department of Justice
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, California 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-5678
Facsimile: (213) 897-9395

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation | Case No. 800-2015-013696
and Petition to Revoke Probation Against:
FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION AND
Irwin Ira Rosenfeld, M.D. PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION
23121 Plaza Pointe Drive, #150
Laguna Hills, CA 92653

Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate
No. G 34731,

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:

PARTIES

1. Kimberly Kirchmeyer (“Complainant”) brings this First Amended Accusation and
Petition to Revoke Probation solely in her official capacity as the Executive Director of the
Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affairs (“Board™).

2. Onorabout July 1, 1977, the Board issued Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate
Number G 34731 to Irwin Ira Rosenfeld, M.D. (“Respondent™). That Certificate was in full force
and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on February 28, 2017,
unless renewed.

3. Inthe Matter of the Accusation Against Irwin Ira Rosenfeld, M.D., Case Number 09-
2008-193536, the Board issued a Decision on November 23, 2011, effective December 23, 2011,

1

First Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation (Case No. 8§00-2015-013696)
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in which Respondent was issued a five-year probationary Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate
with certain terms and conditions. A copy of the 2011 Decision is attached as Exhibit A and is
incorporated by reference.

JURISDICTION

4.  This First Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation is brought before
the Board under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the Business
and Professions Code (“Code”) unless otherwise indicated.

5. Section 2227 of the Code provides that a licensee who is found guilty under the
Medical Practice Act may have his or her license revoked, suspended for a period not to exceed
one year, placed on probation and required to pay the costs of probation monitoring, or such other
action taken in relation to discipline as the Board deems proper.

6.  Section 2234 of the Code states:

“The board shall take action against any licensee who is charged with unprofessional
conduct. In addition to other provisions of this article, unprofessional conduct includes, but is not
limited to, the following:

“(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter.

“(b) Gross negligence.

“(c) Repeated negligent acts. To be repeated, there must be two or more negligent acts or
omissions. An initial negligent act or omission followed by a separate and distinct departure
from the applicable standard of care shall constitute repeated negligent acts.

“(1) An initial negligent diagnosis followed by an act or omission medically appropriate for
that negligent diagnosis of the patient shall constitute a single negligent act.

“(2) When the standard of care requires a change in the diagnosis, act, or omission that
constitutes the negligent act described in paragraph (1), including, but not limited to, a
reevaluation of the diagnosis or a change in treatment, and the licensee's conduct departs from the
applicable standard of care, each departure constitutes a separate and distinct breach of the

standard of care.

2

First Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation {Case No. 800-2015-013696)
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7. Section 725 of the Code states:

“(a) Repeated acts of clearly excessive prescribing, furnishing, dispensing, or administering
of drugs or treatment, repeated acts of clearly excessive use of diagnostic procedures, or repeated
acts of clearly excessive use of diagnostic or treatment facilities as determined by the standard of
the community of licensees is unprofessional conduct for a physician and surgeon, dentist,
podiatrist, psychologist, physical therapist, chiropractor, optometrist, speech-language pathologist,
or audiologist.

“(b) Any person who engages in repeated acts of clearly excessive prescribing or
administering of drugs or treatment is guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of
not less than one hundred dollars ($100) nor more than six hundred dollars ($600), or by
imprisonment for a term of not less than 60 days nor more than 180 days, or by both that fine and
imprisonment.

“(c) A practitioner who has a medical basis for prescribing, furnishing, dispensing, or
administering dangerous drugs or prescription controlled substances shall not be subject to
disciplinary action or prosecution under this section.

“(d) No physician and surgeon shall be subject to disciplinary action pursuant to this section
for treating intractable pain in compliance with Section 2241.5.”

8. Section 2238 of the Code states:

“A violation of any federal statute or federal regulation or any of the statutes or regulations
of this state regulating dangerous drugs or controlled substances constitutes unprofessional
conduct.”

9. Section 2241 of the Code states:

“(a) A physician and surgeon may prescribe, dispense, or administer prescription drugs,
including prescription controlled substances, to an addict under his or her treatment for a purpose
other than maintenance on, or detoxification from, prescription drugs or controlled
substances.

“(b) A physician and surgeon may prescribe, dispense, or administer prescription drugs or

3
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prescription controlled substances to an addict for purposes of maintenance on,

or detoxification from, prescription drugs or controlled substances only as set

forth in subdivision (c) or in Sections 11215, 11217, 11217.5, 11218, 11219, and 11220 of the
Health and Safety Code. Nothing in this subdivision shall authorize a physician and surgeon to
prescribe, dispense, or administer dangerous drugs or controlled substances to a person he or she
knows or reasonably believes is using or will use the drugs or substances for a nonmedical
purpose.

“(c) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), prescription drugs or controlled substances may also
be administered or applied by a physician and surgeon, or by a registered nurse acting under his or
her instruction and supervision, under the following circumstances:

“(1) Emergency treatment of a patient whose addiction is complicated by the presence of
incurable disease, acute accident, illness, or injury, or the infirmities attendant upon age.

“(2) Treatment of addicts in state-licensed institutions where the patient is kept under
restraint and control, or in city or county jails or state prisons.

“(3) Treatment of addicts as provided for by Section 11217.5 of the Health and Safety
Code.

(d)(1) For purposes of this section and Section 2241.5, “addict” means a person whose
actions are characterized by craving in combination with one or more of the following:

(A) Impaired control over drug use.

(B) Compulsive use.

(C) Continued use despite harm.

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), a person whose drug-seeking behavior is primarily due
to the inadequate control of pain is not an addict within the meaning of this section or Section
2241.5.

10.  Section 2241.5 of the Code states:

(a) A physician and surgeon may prescribe for, or dispense or administer to, a person under

his or her treatment for a medical condition dangerous drugs or prescription controlled substances

for the treatment of pain or a condition causing pain, including, but not limited to, intractable

4
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pain.

(b) No physician and surgeon shall be subject to disciplinary action for prescribing,
dispensing, or administering dangerous drugs or prescription controlled substances in accordance
with this section.

(c) This section shall not affect the power of the board to take any action described in
Section 2227 against a physician and surgeon who does any of the following:

(1) Violates subdivision (b), (c), or (d) of Section 2234 regarding gross negligence, repeated
negligent acts, or incompetence.

(2) Violates Section 2241 regarding treatment of an addict.

(3) Violates Section 2242 regarding performing an appropriate prior examination and the
existence of a medical indication for prescribing, dispensing, or furnishing dangerous drugs.

(4) Violates Section 2242.1 regarding prescribing on the Internet.

(5) Fails to keep complete and accurate records of purchases and disposals of substances
listed in the California Uniform Controlled Substances Act (Division 10 (commencing with
Section 11000) of the Health and Safety Code) or controlled substances scheduled in the federal
Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970 (21 U.S.C. Sec. 801 et seq.), or
pursuant to the federal Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970. A
physician and surgeon shall keep records of his or her purchases and disposals of these controlled
substances or dangerous drugs, including the date of purchase, the date and records of the sale or
disposal of the drugs by the physician and surgeon, the name and address of the person receiving
the drugs, and the reason for the disposal or the dispensing of the drugs to the person, and shall
otherwise comply with all state recordkeeping requirements for controlled substances.

(6) Writes false or fictitious prescriptions for controlled substances listed in the California
Uniform Controlled Substances Act or scheduled in the federal Comprehensive Drug Abuse
Prevention and Control Act of 1970.

(7) Prescribes, administers, or dispenses in violation of this chapter, or in violation of
Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 11150) or Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 11210) of

Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code.

5
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(d) A physician and surgeon shall exercise reasonable care in determining whether a
particular patient or condition, or the complexity of a patient's treatment, including, but not
limited to, a current or recent pattern of drug abuse, requires consultation with, or referral to, a
more qualified specialist.

(e) Nothing in this section shall prohibit the governing body of a hospital from taking
disciplinary actions against a physician and surgeon pursuant to Sections 809.05, 809.4, and
809.5.

11.  Section 2242 of the Code states:

“(a) Prescribing, dispensing, or furnishing dangerous drugs as defined in Section 4022
without an appropriate prior examination and a medical indication, constitutes unprofessional
conduct.

“(b) No licensee shall be found to have committed unprofessional conduct within the
meaning of this section if, at the time the drugs were prescribed, dispensed, or furnished, any of
the following applies:

“(1) The licensee was a designated physician and surgeon or podiatrist serving in the
absence of the patient's physician and surgeon or podiatrist, as the case may be, and if the drugs
were prescribed, dispensed, or furnished only as necessary to maintain the patient until the return
of his or her practitioner, but in any case no longer than 72 hours.

“(2) The licensee transmitted the order for the drugs to a registered nurse or to a licensed
vocational nurse in an inpatient facility, and if both of the following conditions exist:

“(A) The practitioner had consulted with the registered nurse or licensed vocational nurse
who had reviewed the patient's records.

“(B) The practitioner was designated as the practitioner to serve in the absence of the
patient's physician and surgeon or podiatrist, as the case may be.

“(3) The licensee was a designated practitioner serving in the absence of the patient's
physician and surgeon or podiatrist, as the case may be, and was in possession of or had utilized
the patient's records and ordered the renewal of a medically indicated prescription for an amount

not exceeding the original prescription in strength or amount or for more than one refill.

6
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“(4) The licensee was acting in accordance with Section 120582 of the Health and Safety
Code.”

12.  Section 2266 of the Code states: “The failure of a physician and surgeon to maintain
adequate and accurate records relating to the provision of services to their patients constitutes
unprofessional conduct.”

13. Health and Safety Code section 11153, subdivision (a) of the Health and Safety Code
provides that “[a] prescription for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a legitimate
medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her professional
practice. The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispensing of controlled substances is
upon the prescribing practitioner, but a corresponding responsibility rests with the pharmacist
who fills the prescription. Except as authorized by this division, the following are not legal
prescriptions: (1) an order purporting to be a prescription which is issued not in the usual course
of professional treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an addict or
habitual user of controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of professional treatment
or as part of an authorized narcotic treatment program, for the purpose of providing the user with
controlled substances, sufficient to keep him or her comfortable by maintaining customary use.”

14. Health and Safety Code section 11156 provides:

(a) Except as provided in Section 2241 of the Business and Professions Code, no person
shall prescribe for, or administer, or dispense a controlled substance to, an addict, or to any person
representing himself or herself as such, except as permitted by this division.

(b)(1) For purposes of this section, “addict” means a person whose actions are characterized
by craving in combination with one or more of the following:

(A) Impaired control over drug use.

(B) Compulsive use.

(C) Continued use despite harm.

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), a person whose drug-seeking behavior is primarily due
to the inadequate control of pain is not an addict within the meaning of this section.

15. Health and Safety Code section 11171 provides that “[n]o person shall prescribe,

7
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administer, or furnish a controlled substance except under the conditions and in the manner
provided by this division.”

16. Health and Safety Code section 11210 provides in pertinent part:

“A physician. . .may prescribe for, furnish to, or administer controlled substances to his or
her patient when the patient is suffering from a disease, ailment, injury, or infirmities attendant
upon old age, other than addiction to a controlled substance.

“The physician. . .shall prescribe, furnish, or administer controlled substances only when in
good faith he or she believes the disease, ailment, injury, or infirmity requires the treatment.

“The physician. . .shall prescribe, furnish, or administer controlled substances only in the
quantity and for the length of time as are reasonably necessary.”

17. Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code provides in
pertinent part, as follows:

Article 2

Treatment of Addicts for Addiction

§ 11215.

(a) Except as provided in subdivision (b), any narcotic controlled substance employed in
treating an addict for addiction shall be administered by:

(1) A physician and surgeon.

(2) A registered nurse acting under the instruction of a physician and surgeon.

(3) A physician assistant licensed pursuant to Chapter 7.7 (commencing with Section 3500)
of Division 2 of the Business and Professions Code acting under the patient-specific authority of
his or her physician and surgeon supervisor approved pursuant to Section 3515 of the Business
and Professions Code.

(b) When acting under the direction of a physician and surgeon, the following persons may
administer a narcotic controlled substance orally in the treatment of an addict for addiction to a
controlled substance:

(1) A psychiatric technician licensed pursuant to Chapter 10 (commencing with Section

4500) of Division 2 of the Business and Professions Code.

8
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(2) A vocational nurse licensed pursuant to Chapter 6.5 (commencing with Section 2840) of
Division 2 of the Business and Professions Code.

(3) A pharmacist licensed pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of
Division 2 of the Business and Professions Code.

(¢) Except as permitted in this section, no person shall order, permit, or direct any other
person to administer a narcotic controlled substance to a person being treated for addiction to a
controlled substance.

§ 11217.

Except as provided in Section 11223, no person shall treat an addict for addiction to a
narcotic drug except in one of the following:

(a) An institution approved by the State Department of Health Care Services, and where the
patient is at all times kept under restraint and control.

(b) A city or county jail.

(c) A state prison.

(d) A facility designated by a county and approved by the State Department of Health Care
Services pursuant to Division 5 (commencing with Section 5000) of the Welfare and Institutions
Code.

(e) A state hospital.

(f) A county hospital.

(g) A facility licensed by the State Department of Health Care Services pursuant to Division
10.5 (commencing with Section 11750).

(h) A facility as defined in subdivision (a) or (b) of Section 1250 and Section 1250.3.

A narcotic controlled substance in the continuing treatment of addiction to a controlled
substance shall be used only in those programs licensed by the State Department of Health Care
Services pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section 11839) of Chapter 10 of Part 2 of
Division 10.5 on either an inpatient or outpatient basis, or both.

This section does not apply during emergency treatment, or where the patient's addiction is

complicated by the presence of incurable disease, serious accident, or injury, or the infirmities of
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old age.

Neither this section nor any other provision of this division shall be construed to prohibit
the maintenance of a place in which persons seeking to recover from addiction to a controlled
substance reside and endeavor to aid one another and receive aid from others in recovering from
that addiction, nor does this section or this division prohibit that aid, provided that no person is
treated for addiction in a place by means of administering, furnishing, or prescribing of controlled
substances. The preceding sentence is declaratory of preexisting law.

Neither this section or any other provision of this division shall be construed to prohibit
short-term narcotic detoxification treatment in a controlled setting approved by the director and
pursuant to rules and regulations of the director. Facilities and treatment approved by the director
under this paragraph shall not be subject to approval or inspection by the Medical Board of
California, nor shall persons in those facilities be required to register with, or report the
termination of residence with, the police department or sheriff's office.

§ 11217.5

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 11217, a licensed physician and surgeon may
treat an addict for addiction in any office or medical facility which, in the professional judgment
of such physician and surgeon, is medically proper for the rehabilitation and treatment of such
addict. Such licensed physician and surgeon may administer to an addict, under his direct care,
those medications and therapeutic agents which, in the judgment of such physician and surgeon,
are medically necessary, provided that nothing in this section shall authorize the administration of
any narcotic drug.

§ 11218.

A physician treating an addict for addiction may not prescribe for or furnish to the addict
more than any one of the following amounts of controlled substances during each of the first 15
days of that treatment:

(a) Eight grains of opium.

(b) Four grains of morphine.

(c) Six grains of Pantopon.
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(d) One grain of Dilaudid.

(e) Four hundred milligrams of isonipecaine (Demerol).

§ 11219.

After 15 days of treatment, the physician may not prescribe for or furnish to the addict more
than any one of the following amounts of controlled substances during each day of the treatment:

(a) Four grains of optum.

(b) Two grains of morphine.

(¢) Three grains of Pantopon.

(d) One-half grain of Dilaudid.

(e) Two hundred milligrams of isonipecaine (Demerol).

§ 11220.

At the end of 30 days from the first treatment, the prescribing or furnishing of controlled
substances, except methadone or LAAM,' shall be discontinued.

§ 11222,

In any case in which a person is taken into custody by arrest or other process of law and is
lodged in a jail or other place of confinement, and there is reasonable cause to believe that the
person is addicted to a controlled substance, it is the duty of the person in charge of the place of
confinement to provide the person so confined with medical aid as necessary to ease any
symptoms of withdrawal from the use of controlled substances.

In any case in which a person, who is participating in a narcotic treatment program, is
incarcerated in a jail or other place of confinement, he or she shall, in the discretion of the director
of the program, be entitled to continue in the program until conviction.

§ 11223.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a physician and surgeon who is registered with

the federal Attorney General pursuant to Section 823(g) of Title 21 of the United States Code may

' LAAM (Levomethadyl acetate) works very much like methadone. LAAM and
methadone are both synthetic opiates, and when given to opiate-dependent drug users, they both
take away feelings of withdrawal and drug cravings.
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provide treatment for addiction pursuant to this federal law.

18. Section 823(g) of Title 21 of the United States Code provides:

(g) Practitioners dispensing narcotic drugs for narcotic treatment; annual registration;
separate registration; qualifications; waiver

(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), practitioners who dispense narcotic drugs to
individuals for maintenance treatment or detoxification treatment shall obtain annually a separate
registration for that purpose. The Attorney General shall register an applicant to dispense narcotic
drugs to individuals for maintenance treatment or detoxification treatment (or both)

(A) if the applicant is a practitioner who is determined by the Secretary to be qualified
(under standards established by the Secretary) to engage in the treatment with respect to which
registration is sought;

(B) if the Attorney General determines that the applicant will comply with standards
established by the Attorney General respecting (i) security of stocks of narcotic drugs for such
treatment, and (ii) the maintenance of records (in accordance with section 827 of this title) on
such drugs; and

(C) if the Secretary determines that the applicant will comply with standards established by
the Secretary (after consultation with the Attorney General) respecting the quantities of narcotic
drugs which may be provided for unsupervised use by individuals in such treatment.

(2)(A) Subject to subparagraphs (D) and (J), the requirements of paragraph (1) are waived
in the case of the dispensing (including the prescribing), by a practitioner, of narcotic drugs in
schedule 111, IV, or V or combinations of such drugs if the practitioner meets the conditions
specified in subparagraph (B) and the narcotic drugs or combinations of such drugs meet the
conditions specified in subparagraph (C).

(B) For purposes of subparagraph (A), the conditions specified in this subparagraph with
respect to a practitioner are that, before the initial dispensing of narcotic drugs in schedule I1I, 1V,
or V or combinations of such drugs to patients for maintenance or detoxification treatment, the
practitioner submit to the Secretary a notification of the intent of the practitioner to begin

dispensing the drugs or combinations for such purpose, and that the notification contain the
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following certifications by the practitioner:

(1) The practitioner is a qualifying physician (as defined in subparagraph (G)).

(i) With respect to patients to whom the practitioner will provide such drugs or
combinations of drugs, the practitioner has the capacity to refer the patients for appropriate
counseling and other appropriate ancillary services.

(iii) The total number of such patients of the practitioner at any one time will not exceed the
applicable number. For purposes of this clause, the applicable number is 30, unless, not sooner
than 1 year after the date on which the practitioner submitted the initial notification, the
practitioner submits a second notification to the Secretary of the need and intent of the
practitioner to treat up to 100 patients. A second notification under this clause shall contain the
certifications required by clauses (i) and (ii) of this subparagraph. The Secretary may by
regulation change such total number.

(C) For purposes of subparagraph (A), the conditions specified in this subparagraph with
respect to narcotic drugs in schedule IIL, IV, or V or combinations of such drugs are as follows:

(i) The drugs or combinations of drugs have, under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic
Act [21 U.S.C.A. § 301 et seq.] or section 262 of Title 42, been approved for use in maintenance
or detoxification treatment.

(ii) The drugs or combinations of drugs have not been the subject of an adverse
determination. For purposes of this clause, an adverse determination is a determination published
in the Federal Register and made by the Secretary, after consultation with the Attorney General,
that the use of the drugs or combinations of drugs for maintenance or detoxification treatment
requires additional standards respecting the qualifications of practitioners to provide such
treatment, or requires standards respecting the quantities of the drugs that may be provided for
unsupervised use.

(D)(i) A waiver under subparagraph (A) with respect to a practitioner is not in effect unless
(in addition to conditions under subparagraphs (B) and (C)) the following conditions are met:

(I) The notification under subparagraph (B) is in writing and states the name of the

practitioner.
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(ID) The notification identifies the registration issued for the practitioner pursuant to
subsection (f) of this section.

(T1I) If the practitioner is a member of a group practice, the notification states the names of
the other practitioners in the practice and identifies the registrations issued for the other
practitioners pursuant to subsection (f) of this section.

(i) Upon receiving a notification under subparagraph (B), the Attorney General shall assign
the practitioner involved an identification number under this paragraph for inclusion with the
registration issued for the practitioner pursuant to subsection (f) of this section. The identification
number so assigned shall be appropriate to preserve the confidentiality of patients for whom the
practitioner has dispensed narcotic drugs under a waiver under subparagraph (A).

(i1i) Not later than 45 days after the date on which the Secretary receives a notification
under subparagraph (B), the Secretary shall make a determination of whether the practitioner
involved meets all requirements for a waiver under subparagraph (B). If the Secretary fails to
make such determination by the end of the such 45-day period, the Attorney General shall assign
the physician an identification number described in clause (ii) at the end of such period.

(E)(i) If a practitioner is not registered under paragraph (1) and, in violation of the
conditions specified in subparagraphs (B) through (D), dispenses narcotic drugs in schedule III,
IV, or V or combinations of such drugs for maintenance treatment or detoxification treatment, the
Attorney General may, for purposes of section 824(a)(4) of this title, consider the practitioner to
have committed an act that renders the registration of the practitioner pursuant to subsection (f) of
this section to be inconsistent with the public interest.

(ii)(I) Upon the expiration of 45 days from the date on which the Secretary receives a
notification under subparagraph (B), a practitioner who in good faith submits a notification under
subparagraph (B) and reasonably believes that the conditions specified in subparagraphs (B)
through (D) have been met shall, in dispensing narcotic drugs in schedule IIL, IV, or V or
combinations of such drugs for maintenance treatment or detoxification treatment, be considered
to have a waiver under subparagraph (A) until notified otherwise by the Secretary, except that

such a practitioner may commence to prescribe or dispense such narcotic drugs for such purposes
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prior to the expiration of such 45-day period if it facilitates the treatment of an individual patient
and both the Secretary and the Attorney General are notified by the practitioner of the intent to
commence prescribing or dispensing such narcotic drugs.

(1) For purposes of subclause (I), the publication in the Federal Register of an adverse
determination by the Secretary pursuant to subparagraph (C)(ii) shall (with respect to the narcotic
drug or combination involved) be considered to be a notification provided by the Secretary to
practitioners, effective upon the expiration of the 30-day period beginning on the date on which
the adverse determination is so published.

(F)(i) With respect to the dispensing of narcotic drugs in schedule I, IV, or V or
combinations of such drugs to patients for maintenance or detoxification treatment, a practitioner
may, in his or her discretion, dispense such drugs or combinations for such treatment under a
registration under paragraph (1) or a waiver under subparagraph (A) (subject to meeting the
applicable conditions).

(ii) This paragraph may not be construed as having any legal effect on the conditions for
obtaining a registration under paragraph (1), including with respect to the number of patients who
may be served under such a registration.

(G) For purposes of this paragraph:

(i) The term “group practice” has the meaning given such term in section 1395nn(h)(4) of
Title 42.

(ii) The term “qualifying physician” means a physician who is licensed under State law and
who meets one or more of the following conditions:

(I) The physician holds a subspecialty board certification in addiction psychiatry from the
American Board of Medical Specialties.

(II) The physician holds an addiction certification from the American Society of Addiction
Medicine.

(II1) The physician holds a subspecialty board certification in addiction medicine from the
American Osteopathic Association.

(IV) The physician has, with respect to the treatment and management of opiate-dependent
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